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1. Name

historic Mexico Farm Landing Fif}d; Cumber]ar}‘dr }anding Field

| X 1
Mexico Farm Airport referred
and or common P (p )

2. Location

Mexico Farm Road N/A L
street & number —_ not for publication
city, town Cumberland X__ vicinity of congressional district Sixth
state Maryland code 24 county Allegany code 001
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____ district ___ public X __ occupied . agriculture ____ museum

X building(s) _X__ private ____ unoccupied ____ commercial ____ park
structure — both - work in progress — educational ____ private residence
. site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment ___ religious
____ object ____in process X yes: restricted ____government ____ scientific
being considered ____ yes: unrestricted . industrial X __transportation
X N/A no _ military __ other:

4. Owner of Property

name Multiple ownership, see Continuation Sheet #1

street & number

city, town —_ vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Allegany County Courthouse

street & number Washington Street

city, town Cumberland

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Maryland Historical Trust

state Maryland 21502

title Historic Sites Survey has this property been determined elegible? ____yes L no
vate 1979 federal _X  state __county  _ local
depository for survey records Maryland Historical Trust

city, town Annapolis state Maryland
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OWNERS OF PROPERT”TC

John A. Miltenber:er

P. 0. Box 606

Ridgeley, West Viz-ginia 20753
Harvey A. Johnson

Rt. 4, Box 168

Cumberland, Marylznd 21502

Donald J. Johnson
Rt. 4, Box 164
Cumberland, Maryl=nd 21502

Floyd J. Johnson
Rt. 4, Box 164
Cumberland, Maryland 21502
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/. Tascription A-TTI-4-153
Condition Check one Check one
~ excellent - deteriorated ____ unaltered X original site
. jood ____ruins X altered ___moved  date
_X__ tair ___unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

GENERAL

Mexico Farm Airport consists of three landing strips, one of which is abandoned,
that stretch over approximately 190 acres of flat unpaved land near the Potomac
River. TFourteen structures, mostly hangars of metal or masonry construction,

stand along the two remaining landing strips. Concrete pads used as foundations

for the buildings along the original landing field mark the location of earlier
hangars.

DESCRIPTION

The Mexico Farm Airport consists of three landing fields. Nothing remains
of the 1923 Army Air Corps installation but a few small concrete foundation pads.
0ld photographs do provide evidence to reconstruct what was there. They show
that the facility, located on a knoll approximately 100 yards northwest of the
Long farmhouse, included barracks, a gasoline storage shed, two 80 foot radio
transmission towers, and a windsock (see A1-11I-A-154). The square turf landing
field stretched from the Potomac River to a road north of the farmhouse. The
barracks was a one story, three bays wide frame structure with a gable flank
roof. The corrucated tin gasoline shed was elevated to provide gravity fed
refueling of the planes. Metal radio transmission towers had concrete bases.

Metal radio transmission towers had concrete bases. All of these structures
were dismantled during the early 1930s.

The second landing field is located on what is now the Johnson farm. A
2,500 foot turf landing strip runs east to west. Of seven hangars which were
erected at this strip, only one remains at this original location. This hangar
and another which was moved to the the third field are typical of the others
which have been torn down. 1t is a flat roofed, rectangular structure of
corrugated tin bolted to wooden posts. The roof is suspended by steel cables
bolted to a beam above the wide doorway. The cablesare anchored into the ground
and supported by tall wooden posts. Corrugated tin doors slide on runners
extended on both sides. Other original structures at this landing strip are a
small tin gasoline shed, a gasoline pump, and a windsock. Other hangars at this
site are of recent construction. See below for buildings along this strip.

The third landing field is also on the Johnson farm. A 2,500 foot turf
landing strip runs northwest to southeast, intersecting a second strip. On the
eastern side are two cable-supported tin hangars: one moved from the older
strip and the other of more recent construction. A third flat—-roofed hangar
on the eastern side of the strip is similar to the others in appearance, but
differs in that the roof is supported by a steel beam and the doors are hinged.
All hangars on this side of the strip are supported by wooden posts on the west.
See below for buildings along this strip.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (Continued) Buildings on western side of Landing Field {3
A This small pentagonal hangar was constructed during the late 1930s, between

1938 and 1940. Walls are corrugated metal nailed to a wooden frame. The shed
roof is covered with tarpaper and eaves consist of a slight overhang. Large
doors on the eastern facade which originally opened on runners now fold on
hinges. Three light fixed windows are on the southwest.

‘ay swiyd cax3ay

B. The large rectangular Reynolds; Flying Service hangar was built between
1938 and 1940. Walls are corrugated metal nailed to a wooden frame. The gable
front roof is covered with corrugated metal and eaves consist of a cornice and
soffit. On the south is a shed roofed addition which is frame covered with
corrugated metal. Doors of the hangar are hinged and open on runners. An
entrance on the east of the addition is a two panel door with original hardware.
Windows are of two lights each.

/
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C. This non-contributing building is a modern two story brick and frame house.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #3
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (Continued)

D.

Originally located at Landing Field #2
1936.
open on runners which are supported by
on the eastern facade.

The building is frame covered with corrugated metal.

Buildings on the eastern side of landing field #3

The small rectangular snack bar hangar was constructed in the late 1920s.

it was moved to its present location in
The doors slide

large posts. Two small additions are

‘P suavf 91 XIW

E.

is frame covered with corrugated metal
are hinged and open on runners.

—

/
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Doers I
37’ S
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This irregularly shaped hangar was constructed between 1940 and 1941. It

and has a shed roof. Doors on the west

A fine panel entrance is on the south.
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This non-contributing building built in 1979 is used as an office, snack
Construction is of cinderblocks.

F.
bar, and hangar.

G.
with corrugated metal.

of several cable supported hangars.
cables extending from tall posts.

A

This "T" shaped hangar was constructed in 1947.
The building is supported by wooden posts.

“

Walls are frame covered

It is omne
beam above the doors is supported by

Hinged doors open on runners.

I
—r
/

/

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET f#4
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GENERAL DZSCRIPTION (Centinued)

H. This non-contributing structure is a stable of recent construction. Walls
are ‘rave covered¢ with corrugated metal.

Buildings at landing field #

I. This rectangular hangar build ca. 1928 is frame covered with corrugated
metal. It is one of several cable supported hangars located at the airfield.

The large beam above the door is supported by cables extending from tall posts.
Doors slide open on runners extended to either side.

——— 39 .y WE
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J. The Cumberland Flying School hangar was built between 1938 and 1940. 1In
1941 it was moved from Landing Field #3 to its present location. The large
rectangular hangar is frame covered with corrugated metal. The gable front
roof is covered with corrugated metal and eaves consist of a cornice and soffit
on flanks and rafter ends in the gable ends. The southern facade features a
hinged awning the width of the facade. An entrance with a shedhood is located

on the western facade. The aircraft entrance on the north includes hinged
doors which open on runners.
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K. This non-contributing structure was built in the late 1960s of various
materials. Part of this hangar-workshop is cable supported.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #5

Buildings on the eastern side of landing field #3
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (Continued) Buildings at landing field #2
L. This non-contributing hangar was built in the late 1960s. Wall construction
is cable supported.
M. This non-contributing hangar was built in the late 1960s. Wall construction

is of cinderblocks.

N. This larger hangar is of recent construction. Walls are of cinderblock.




1
N

- wignificance A-111-A-155

w -

e ..-iod Areas cf Sigr:ificance—Check and justify below
- prehistoric ____ arcr=2olog'+-prehistoric _ community planning __ landscape architecture religion
1400-1499 ____ arcr~=olog' -historic —___ conservation — law —_ science
1500-1599 ___ agr culturs - economics - literature —__ sculpture
L 1600-1699 ___ arcr‘tecturs —_ education — military —— social/
_“__1700_1799 __art —— engineering —— music humanitarian
- 1800-1899 ___ cor merce — exploration settlement __ philosophy — theater
I 1900 . cor munic:ztions —— industry — politics government _X transponrtation
T ___invention ____ other (specity)
Sc.zcific dates 192--194Cs Builder Architect unknown

-

Stz tement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Applicable criterion: A

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMAZY

The significzzce of Mexico Farm Alrport in Allegany County derives from
two sources. Firsz, as a leading field established in 1923 by the U.S. Army
Air Service as par:t of an experimental flight path between Washington, D.C.
and Dayton, Qhio, the airport played a role in the development of air trans—
portation in the United States. The second source of significancederives from
the use of the landing field as a community airport by Cumberland in the 1930s
and 1940s after it was abandoned for federal use. 1In this capacity the
airport played a role in the transportation and commercial history of the area
by being the only airport in this section of the s

tate, thus being a terminus
for people and goods coming in and out of the area

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

Aviation first appeared in the Cumberland area as a form of entertainment.
The featured attraction of the Great Cumberland Fair in 1911 was Albert Elton,
one of the first aviators to visit the area, whose aerial acrobatics aboard a
Wright pusher "aeroplane" delighted the crowds.l In later years increased
awareness of more practical uses of aviation was the result of two developments:

b
the technological improvements in aeronautics of the 1910s, and the dramatic
role of aviation in the First World War.

One result of this new appreciation was an attempt to provide safer routes
of air transportation. During the first years of the 1920s, Army Air Service
pilots "pioneered many of the airways across the United States, collecting
valuable data and spotting airfield locations". An effort was made to locate
safe landing fields for emergency use along an experimental '"Model Airway"
between Washington, D. C. and Dayton, Ohio.3 Officers of the Air Service
passed through towns along the airway distributing questionaires inquiring of
possible landing sites which were particularly necessary in mountainous areas.4

Much of the effort in the Cumberland
Hammond Amick of the Air Service Reserve,
emergency landings were made anywhere that
from the air, a dangerous practicc.f
farm on the West Virginia side of the Po
After- an unsuccessful attempt was made

area was carried on by Captain A.
a local aviator.d At that time
the terrain looked accommodating
Some landings were made at the Lamp
tomac River south of Cumberland.

ir Service should lease part of "Mexico
Farm", located across the river in Maryland.’ Within a month a pilot was

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #6
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (Continued)

sent to investigate the site and in July a lease was made with the owner,

Mrs. Crites, providing an 85 acre field "for the purposes of the Air Service'".8
Due to the scarcity of funds for Air Service projects, land owners were given
nominal rental fees of one dollar per annum in exchange for exclusive rights

for the sale of gasoline and o0il to civilian pilots. The city of Cumberland,
aware of the benefits of having an official landing field nearby, donated its
services in preparing the field which in November of 1923 was officially declared
"available for planes flying over the Model Airway".10

The square "all weather" turf field was designed for landings made under

all wind conditions. Planes took off into the wind over the Potomac. Two
80 foot metal radio transmission towers and a gravity fed refueling station
were built near the combination barracks and operations building.1 The

barracks, built in 1924 by the Constructing Quartermaster Corps, was a 20 X 30
foot frame building on concrete piers which also served as the communications
and operations office. An addition of the same size was added in 1928.12

The five man crew of the landing field consisted of a sergeant who was
"an airplane engine man and rigger, and the radio and meteorological detachments"
of enlisted men.l3 An officer of Bolling Airfield in Washington was to
"periodically inspect" the station.l# When an inspection was made in April of
1929, it was revealed that living conditions at the station were not ''creditable
to the Army", although the crew was "fullfilling their duties . . . in keeping
the station in good repair.'1l5 The major problem was the gasoline engine
powering the radio which was located in the living and eating quarters. Other
problems were poor furniture and the lack of bathing facilities. The recommended
improvements, including a bath and telephone service, undoubtedly made conditions
more comfortable and gave '"more distinction to the post'. 16

When the landing field was closed in 1925 as a result of one pilot's

complaints of unsafe landing conditions, the Chief of the Air Services Airway
Section protested, writing that:

...this field at the present time is in better condition than Bolling
field in Washington, D.C., which is used daily_although filled with mud
holes.... The establishment of Cumberland Field by individuals at
Cumberland has saved the Air Service thousands of dollars through the
availability of a good field, the absence of which would undoubtedly

cause mang crashes in this vicinity when pilots are caught in bad
weather. !

An article in the Cumberland Evening Times stated that "Flyers who have
visited Cumberland have expressed themselves as highly pleased with the Mexico
Farms field in every respect. . ." and that the field had a great future
both because of its position and physical features. . .18

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #7
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (Continued)

The field proved useful the the Air Corps (the Air Service was renamed
the Army Air Corps in 1926) in conducting experiments in ground to air communi-
cations. An experiment early in 1927 involved the use of marked wooden paBels
"shown by ground personnel to aviators to show weather conditions ahead".l
The meteorological team stationed at Mexico Farms conducted weather observations
which were broadcast twice daily to other fields and to passing planes.20 1In
1927, command of the field was passed from the commanding officer of Bolling

Field to the jurisdiction of the commanding officer of Burgess Field in Uniontown,
Pennsylvania.21

A variety of developments, beginning late in the 1920s led to the gradual
obsolescence of the landing field culminating in the cessation of operations
there in late 1931.22 Air Corps planes occasionally used the field and an Army
caretaker was stationed there until 1932.23 Technological advances made the
landing field unnecessary for a number of reasons. Major Howard C. Davidson
explained to the Chief of the Air Corps in 1930 that:

This field has played an important part in the development of the
(Model) Airway to Dayton during the times when Service airplanes were
equipped with fuel tanks of smaller capacity, but the larger tanks in

the present day airglanes permit them to go straight through to Dayton
without refueling.2

The establishment of broadcasting Weather Bureau stations at nearby Savage
Mountain and Keyser's Ridge, Maryland, and at Woodcock Hill, Pennsylvania

made the meteological detachment at the low-lying air field obsolete. Another
factor contributing to the closing of the field was the foggy weather frequently
experienced along the Potomac.23 The chief of the Air Corps Airport Section
wrote in 1933, that the "discontinuance of this field was brought about as a
result of reduced appropriations and the government economy program."26

Feeling the pinch of tight money during the Depression years, the Air Corps
salvaged the equipment and buildings at the field, sending the transmission

towers by rail to Barksdale Field in Louisiana.2’ The lease for the field
was terminated in 1934.28

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #8
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landing field.
solo flight,

After spending the night in Cumberland, Post took off in "Winnie May", his
monoplane, and resumed his journey along the Washington-Dayton air route.41

HISTORY ANXD SUPPORT (Continued)

Throughout the late 1920s and during the early 1930s, civilian use of the
Air Corps landing field was increasing. The Air Corps declared in 1929 that
"aircraft of any ownership, lawfully operated, can use the field" and received
regular requests for landing privileges.29 Tri-Motor Air Tours, Inc. and the
Mountain States Aircraft Corporation requested such rights in 1930.30 The
latter firm, a Cumberland based airplane manufacturer, also received permission
to erect a hangar on the field.3! One of the more distinguished aviators using
the field was Colonel Charles A. Lindbergh, who in 1927 declined an invitation
to include Cumberland as part of his national tour following his trans-Atlantic
flight.32 But in January of 1929 "low visibility, a cracked exhaust pipe, and
a shortage of fuel” forced Lindbergh to land a Ford-Stout tri-motor monoplane

at the Air Corps field.33 While his plane was repaired, Lindbergh spent a
short time inspecting the field."34

Problems at the air field arose with activities such as the two week visit
of barnstormersin 1927 which attracted hundreds of people to the field for
plane rides. Distractions of this sort and questions concerning gasoline
supplies created a need for a separate civilian air field which was established
in 1928 on the adjacent fields of Jerome Johnson.36 A 2,500 foot turf landing
strip running east and west was the basis of the airfield. Between 1928 and
1934 seven hangars were built south of the strip by individual aviators. The
corrugated tin structures with cable supported roofs were owned by Captain A. H.
Amick, Minnie and Bill Johnson, Woody Rayburn, '"Torque' Landis, Bill Whitehead,

Bernie Miltenberger, and Forest Miller, local aviators who mostly flew surplus
aircraft from the war.37

In April of 1933 the county's 'first regular passenger air service" was
initiated by the Johnson Airlines Company which made regular flights from
Mexico Farm to Hagerstown, Baltimore, Washington, and Pittsburg.38 An air
show in 1935 is fully described in the latest history of Allegany County.

A large and enthusiastic crowd came to see the big air show at Mexico
Farms in July of 1935, staged in conjunction with Cumberland's sesqui-
centeniel. The Goodyear Blimp, stunt flying, and a bomb-dropping
demonstration by five National Guard observation planes highlighted
the events. A twenty-eight passenger Boeing commercial aircraft was
on hand to take local people for short rides. Truly, the air age had
come to Allegany Countyv by the mid-1930s40

In 1933 the visit of a famous pilot drew hundreds of spectators to the

In the same year he made his record breaking, around the world
Wiley Post made a forced landing at Mexico Farms Airfield.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #9
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BHISTORY AND SUPPORT (Continued)

In 1934 the City of Cumberland leased the airfield and constructed a second
rutway running north and south.%2 After the 1936 flood of the Potomac which
in:ndated much of the older field, one of the hangars was moved to the new field.
Throughout the 1930s and early 1940s, eight hangars were located along the sides
of the landing field. Two of these, much larger than the single plane hangars3
were built by the Reynold's Flying Service and the Cumberland Flying Service.

The field is still in use, but commercial aviation has moved to the mountain-top
Cucberland Airport constructed in the mid 1940s. 44

FOOTNOTES

1. The Cumberland Evening Times, September 29, 1911, p. 10, and October 2, 1911, p.Z2.
2. Alfred Goldberg, ed. A History of the United States Air Force (Princeton, N.J.

D. Von Nostrad Co.,, Inc., 1957)_5.34.
3. Interview with Captain A. H. Amick, Air Service Reserve, Retired, Cumberland,

Md., October 18, 1979.
4 Signal Corps File 868, dated May 16, 1922, National Archives.
5 Signal Corps File 686 dated April 6, 1923 and November 18, 1925.
6. Interview with Captain Amick.
7
8

Signal Corps file 686. dated April 6, 1923.
Ibid, dated May 8, 1923, June 13, 1923, July 7, 1923 and Allegany ‘County
Land Records Liber 152. Folio 212-213,

9, Signal Corps files 686, dated April 6, 1923, and Air Corps file 665.6 dated
February 2 1932,

10. Signal Corps files 686, dated November 3, 1923,

11. Interview with Floyd Johnson, Mexico Farms Airport, August 27, 1979.

12. Signal Corps files 665.2 no date, and 686, dated January 5, 1925.

13. Signal Corps file 686. dated August 16, 1923,

14, 1Ibid.

15. Air Corps file 686, letter from Capt. A. H. Thiessen to Chief of Air Corps,
dated May 10, 1929.

16. Ibid, and files 400.7 no date, and 676.1 dated Mary 20, 1930,

17. Signal Corps file 686, dated November 18, 1925.

18. July 19, 1927, p.o9.

19. Air Corps file 686, dated March 8, 1927 and Goldberg, A History of the U. S.
Air Force, p. 36.

20. Air Corps file 686, dated August 26, 1931, and interview with Floyd Johnson

21, Air Corps file 686 dated March 8, 1927,

22, Ibid. files 665.2 dated October 29, 1931 and 686 dated August 18, 1933,

23. 1bid, file 665.2 dated 1932.

24, 1bid, dated August 5, 1939.

25. Ibid, no date

26. 1bid, file 696, dated August 18, 1933.

27. 1bid, file 665.2 no date

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #10
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31. 1Ibid, file 634, dated February 8, 1930 and Allegany County Certificate of
Incorporation Liber 7, Folio 286.

32. Cumberland Evening Times, July 19, 1927, p. 9.

33. 1Ibid, January 14, 1929, p. 12.

34. 1Ibid,

35, 1Ibid, September 7, 1927, p.9.

36. Interview with Floyd Johnson.

37. Ibid

38. Farry 1. Stegmaier, Jr., et al., Allegany County, A History (Parsons, W.Va.
McClain Printing Co.) p. 360.

39. Feritage Weekley, Allegany County. Vol. I, No. 27, p.2.

40. Stegmaier et al. ;. 360.

41. Cumberland Sunday Times, April 8, 1945,
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property _approx. 190 acres
Cresaptown, Md.
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Verbal boundary description and justification

Quadrangle scale

The boundaries are delineated on the enclosed map labeled "Boundary Map'".
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MAGI NO. 010773730

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

EINAME

HISTORIC

Mexico Farms Landing field Cumberland Landing field

AND/OR COMMON . .
Mexico Farms Airport

BEJLOCATION

STREET & NUMBER “
Mexico Farms Road

Sixth

CITY. TOWN

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

Cunber] and i VICINITY OF
STATE COUNTY
Maryland legany
[EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC occuriep _AGRICULTURE  __MUSEUM
—BUILDING(S) _X’RIVATE __UNOCCUPIED - COMMERCIAL __PARK
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED —ORIGINAL SITE
—GOooD —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —_UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL ({IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

of the three landing fields, established at Mexico Farms two
are still in use. The earliest field, that of the Army Air Corps,
has been abandoned.

Nothing remains of the Army Air Corps installation but an idea
of what was there is provided by old photographs, They show that
the facility, located on a knoll approximately 100 yards northwest
of the Long farmhouse, included barracks, a gasoline storage shed,
two 80 foot radio transmission towers, and a windsock. (See A1-111-
A-154) The square turf landing field strectched from the Potomac
River to a road north of the farmhouse. The barracks was a one story,
three bays wide frame structure with a gable flank roof. The corrugat-
ed tin gasoline shed was elevated to provide gravity fed refeuling
of the planes. Metal radio transmission towers had concrete bases.
A11 of these structures were dismantled during the early 1930's.

The second landing field is on the Johnson farm. A 2,500 foot
turf Tanding strip runs east and west. Of seven hangars which
were erected at this strip only one remains at this original Tocation.
This hangar and another which was moved to the third fie1:d are typical
of the others which were torn down. It is a flat roofed rectangular
structure of corrugated tin bolted to wooden posts. The roof is
suspended by steel cables bolted to a beam above the wide doorway.
The cables are anchored into the ground and supported by tall wooden
posts. Corrugated tin doors slide on runners extended on both sides.
Other original structures at this landing strip are a small tin gasoline
shed, a gasoline pump, and a windsock. Other hangars at this site are
of recent construction.

The third Tanding field is also on the Johnson farm. A 2,500 foot turf
landing strip runs northwest and southeast intersecting the second
strip. On the eastern side are two cable supported tin hangars: one
moved from the older strip and the other of more recent construction.
A third flat roofed hangar on the eastern side of the strip is similar
to the others in appearance but differs in that the roof is supported
by a steel beam and the doors are hinged. Al1 hangars on this side of
the strip are supported by wooden posts on the west.

Two larger hangars were built on the western side of the landing
strip. These are rectangular frame structures with walls of corrugated
tin, gable front roofs, and two section hinged doors which open on
runners. One of these, the Reynolds Flying School hangar, has a full
length shed roofed office and workshop on the south. The other large
hangar has been moved to the older field. A shed roofed hangar on the
western side of the strip has five sides, and hinged doors which open
on runners.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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B} SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —__COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS X.LfTERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 —ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION __MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —MusiC —THEATER

1800-1899 OMMERCE —_EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —_PHILOSOPHY XTRANSPORTATION
X‘ISOO- iOMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT X_OTHER (SPECIFY)AV-iat-‘lon

—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1923 BUILDER/ARCHITECT U.S. Army Quartermaster Corp

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Aviation first appeared in the Cumberland area as a form of
entertainment. The featured attraction of the Great Cumberland
Fair of 1911 was Albert Elton, one of the first aviators to visit
the area, whose aerial acrobatics aboard a Wright pusher "aeroplane"
delighted large crowds. (1) In later years increased awareness of
more practical uses of aviation was the result of two developments;
the technological improvements in aeronautics of the 1910's, and
the dramatic role of aviation in the First World War.

One result of this new appreciation was an attempt to provide
safer routes of air transportation. During the first years of the
1920's, Army Air Service pilots "pioneered many of the airways across
the United States, collecting valuable data and spotting airfield
locations". (2) An effort was made to locate safe landing fields
for emergency use along an experimental "Model Airway" between
Washington D.C. and Dayton,Ohio. (3) Officers of the Air Service
passed through towns along the airway distributing questionaires
inquiring of possible landing sites which were particularly necessary
in mountainous areas. (4)

Much of the effort in the Cumberland area was carried on by
Captain A. Hammond Amick’ of the Air Service Reserve, a local aviator. (5)
At that time emergency landings were made anywhere that the terrain looked
accomodating from the air, a dangerous practice . (6) Some landings
were made at the Lamp farm on the West Virginia side of the Potomac River
south of Cumberland. After an unsuccessful attempt was made to lease
this field in April of 1923, Captain Amick recommended that the Air
Service should lease part of "Mexico Farm", located across the river
in Maryland. (7) Withing a month a pilot was sent to investigate the
site and in July a lease was made with the ownzr, Mrs. Crites, providing
an 85 acre field "for the purposes of the Air Service". (8) Due to the
scarcity of funds for Air Service projects, land owners were given
nominal rental fees of one dollar per annum in exchange for exclusive
rights for the sale of gasoline and oil to civilian pilots. (9) The
City of Cumberland, aware of the benefits of having an official landing

(cont.)
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Mexico Farms Landing Field
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Mexico Farms Rd, Cumberland
1923

Early in the 1920's the Army Air Service sought to improve the safety
of air travel by creating a "Model Airway" between Washington, D.C. and
Dayton, Ohio. An important element of the airway was the existence of
emergency landing fields to be used during bad weather or for emergency
repairs. In 1923 a portion of "Mexico Farm" on the Potomac River south
of Cumberland was leased by the Air Service and an airfield was establshed
with a crew of five men: a sergeant who was an aviation mechanic, and
meteorological and radio detachments of two enlisted men each. By 1925
it was stated that the effort had "saved the Air Service thousands of
dollars throught the availability of a good field" without which many
planes would have crashed.

By 1931 the landing field had become obsolete due to a variety of
factors. the larger fuel capacity of the more modern planes which
eliminated the need for refeuling stops, the often foggy weather at the
airfield, new broadcasting Weather Bureau stations established in the area,
and the reduced military appropriations during the Depression. Although
the military field was permanently closed in 1932, aviation activities
at Mexico Farms continued on a civilian airfield which had been in
operation on the adjacent Johnson farm since 1928.

The Mexico Farms Landing Field on the Johnson farm proved to be a
popular spot as barnstormers selling plane rides, air shows, and the
visits of famous aviators attracted hundreds of spectators. An airline
and two flying services were in operation by the mid-1930's when the city
of Cumberland leased the airfield and constructed a north-south runway
to compliment the existing east-west turf landing strip. The airfield
is sti11 in operation as one of the oldest continually operated airports
in Maryland.

When the Army Air Corps closed its landing field it salvaged the
buildings and radio transmission towers. Remaining structures at the older
civilian field include one of the cable suspended hangars built around 1928.
The roof of the building is suspended by steel cables supported by tall wooden
posts, a functional design which gives the maximum unobstructed width necessary
to accommodate an airplane. Hangars at the latter landing strip include two
of these cable supported hangars, a similar hangar built with steel beams for

support, and two much larger gable roofed hangars which housed the flying services.

A11 original structures remaining at both airfields are constructed of corrugated
tin.
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field nearby, donated its services in preparing the field which in November
of 1923 was officially declared "available for planes flying over the Model
Airway". (10)

The square "all weather" turn field was designed for landings made
under all wind conditions. Planes took off into the wind over the Potomac.
Two 80 foot metal radio transmission towers and a gravity fed refueling
station were built near the combination barracks and operations building. (11)
The barracks, built in 1924 by the Constructing Quartermaster Corps, was a
20 x 30 foot frame building on concrete piers which also served as the
communications and operations office. An addition of the same size was
added in 1928 (12)

The five man crew of the landing field consisted of a sergeant who
was "an airplane engine man and rigger, and the radio and meteorological
detachments" of enlisted men. (13) An officer of Bolling Airfield in
Washington was to "periodically inspect" the station. (14) When an
inspection was made in April of 1929, it was revealed that living conditions
at the station were not "creditable to the Army", although the crew was
"fullfilling their duties... in keeping the station in good repair." (15)
The major problem was the gasoline engine powering the radio which was
located in the 1iving and eating quarters. Other problems were poor
furniture and the lack of bathing facilities. The recommended improvements,
including a bath and telephone service, undoubtedly made conditions more

— comfortable and gave "more distinction to the post". (16)

When the landing field was closed in 1925 as the result of one pilot's
complaints of unsafe landing conditions, the Chief of the Air Services
Airway Section protested, writing that:

... this field at the present time is in better condition
than Bolling field in Washington D.C., which is used daily
although filled with mud holes.... The establishment

of Cumberland Field by individuals at Cumberland has

saved the Air Service thousands of dollars through the
availability of a good field, the absence of which would
undoubtedly camse many crashes in this vicinity when pilots
are caught in bad weather. (17)

An article in the Cumberland Evening Times stated that "Flyers who have visited
Cumberland have expressed themselves as highly pleased with the Mexico Farms field in every
respect..." and that the field had a great future"... both because of its
position and physical features...."(18)

The field proved useful to the Air Corps (the Air Service was renamed
the Army Air Corps in 1926) in conducting experiments in ground to air
communications. An experiment early in 1927 involved the use of marked
wooden panels "shown by ground personnel to aviators to show weather conditions
ahead". (19) The meteorological team stationed at Mexico Farms conducted
—  weather observations which were broadcast twice daily to other fields and
to passing planes. (20) In 1927, command of the field was passed from the
commanding officer of Bolling Field to the jurisdiction of the commanding
officer of Burgess Field in Uniontown, Pennsylvania. (21)
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A variety of developments, beginning Tate in the 1920's led to the
gradual obsolescence of the landing field culminating in the cessation
of operations there in late 1931. ?22) Air Corps plaines occaisionally
used the field and an Army caretaker was stationed there until 1932.(23)
Technological advances made the landing field unnecessary for a number
of reasons. Major Howard C. Davidson explained to the Chief of the Air
Corps in 1930 that:

This field has played an important part in the development
of the (Model) Airway to Dayton during the times when
Service airplanes were equipped with fuel tanks of

smaller capacity, but the larger tanks in the present

day airplanes permit them to go straight through to

Dayton without refeuling. (24)

The establishment of broadcasting Weather Bureau stations at
nearby Savage Mountain and Keyser's Ridge, Maryland, and at Woodcock
Hi11, Pennsylvania made the meteorological detachment at the Tow-
lying air field obsolete. Another factor contributing to the closing
of the field was the foggy weather frequently experienced along the
Potomac. (25) The chief of the Air Corps Airport Section wrote in
1933, that the "discontinuance of this field was brought about as a
result of reduced appropriations and the government economy program. "(26)
Feeling the pinch of tight money during the Depression years, the Air Corps
salvaged the equipment and buildings at the field, sending the transmission
towers by rail to Barksdale Field in Louisiana. (27) The lease for the
field was terminated in 1934.(28)

Throughout the Tate 1920's and during the early 1930's, civilian
use of the Air Corps landing field was increasing. The Air Corps
declared in 1929 that "aircraft of any ownership, lawfully operated, can
use the fiéld" and received regular requests for landing privileges.(29)
Tri-Motor Air Tours, Inc. and the Mountain States Aircraft Corporation
requested such rights in 1930.(30) The Tatter firm, a Cumberland based
airplane manufacturer, also received permission to erect a hangar on the
field. (31) One of the more distinguised aviators using the field was
Colonel Charles A. Lindbergh, who in 1927 declined an invitation to
include Cumberland as part of his national tour following his trans-
Atlantic flight. (32) But in January of 1929 "low visibility, a cracked
exhaust pipe, and a shortage of fuel" forced Lindbergh to land a Ford-
Stout trimotor monoplane at the Air Corps field. (33) While his plane
was repaired, Lindbergh, spent a short time inspecting the field." (34)

Problems at the air field arose with activities such as the two
week visit of barnstarmer in 1927 which attracted hundreds of people
to the field for plane rides. (35) Distractions of this sort and
questions concerning gasoline supplies created a need for a separate
civilian air field which was established in 1928 on the adjacent fields
of Jerome Johnson. (36) A 2,500 foot turf landing strip running east
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(significance cont.)

and west was the basis of the airfield. Between 1928 and 1934 seven hangars
were built south of the strip by individual aviators. The corrugated tin
structures with cable supported roofs were owned by Captain A.H. Amick,
Minnie and Bi11 Johnson, Woody Rayburn, "Torque" Landis, Bill Whitehead,
Bernie Miltenberger, and Forest Miller, local aviators who mostly flew
surplus aircraft from the war. (37)

In April of 1933 the county's "first regular passenger air service"
was initiated by the Johnson Airlines Company which made regular flights
from Mexico Farms to Hagerstown, Baltimore, Washington, and Pittsburgh.(38)
An air show at the field in 1928 featured a Fox Movie News Fokker monoplane.(39)
An airshow in 1935 is fully described in the latest history of Allegany County.

A Targe and enthusiastic crowd came to see the big air show at
Mexico Farms in July of 1935, staged in conjunction with Cumberland's
sesquicentenniel. The Goodyear Blimp, stunt flying, and a bomb-
dropping demonstration by five National Guard observation planes
highlighted the events. A twenty-eight passenger Boeing commercial
aircraft was on hand to take local people for short rides. Truly,
the air age had come to Allegany County by the mid- 1930's (40)

In 1933 the visit of famous pilot drew hundreds of spectators to the
landing field. In the same year he made his record breaKing, around the
world, solo flight, Wiley Post made a forced landing at Mexico Farms Airfield.
After spending the night in Cumberland, Post took off in "Winnie May", his
monoplane, and resumed his journey along the Washington-Dayton air route.(41)

In 1934 the City of Cumberland leased the airfield and constructed a
second runway running north and south. (42) After the 1936 flood of the
Potomac which inundated much of the older field, one of the hangars was
moved to the new field. Throughout the 1930's and early 1940's, eight
hangars were located along the sides of the landing field. Two of these,
much Targer than the single plane hangars, were built by the Reynold's
Flying Service and the Cumberland Flying Service. (43) The field is still
in use, but commercial aviation has moved to the mountain-top Cumberland
Municipal Airport constructed in the mid 1940's.(44)
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